Qualification Accredited



GCSE (9-1)

Examiners' report

FOOD PREPARATION AND NUTRITION

J309

For first teaching in 2016

J309/01 Summer 2023 series

Contents

r	ntroduction	4	ļ
>	aper 1 series overview	5	5
	Question 1 (a)	6	;
	Question 1 (b) (i)	7	7
	Question 1 (b) (ii)	7	7
	Question 1 (c) (i)	8	3
	Question 1 (c) (ii)	8	3
	Question 1 (c) (iii)	8	3
	Question 1 (c) (iv)	9)
	Question 2 (a) (i)	9)
	Question 2 (a) (ii)	9)
	Question 2 (b)	10)
	Question 2 (c)	10)
	Question 3*	11	l
	Question 4 (a) (i)	11	ĺ
	Question 4 (a) (ii)	12	<u>}</u>
	Question 4 (a) (iii)	12	<u>}</u>
	Question 4 (a) (iv)	13	3
	Question 4 (b) (i)	13	3
	Question 4 (b) (ii)	13	3
	Question 5 (a)	14	ļ
	Question 5 (b)	14	ļ
	Question 5 (c)*	15	5
	Question 6 (a)	15	5
	Question 6 (b)	16	;
	Question 7 (a)	16	3
	Question 7 (b)	17	7
	Question 7 (c) (i)	17	7
	Question 7 (c) (ii)	18	3
	Question 8 (a) (i)		
	Question 8 (a) (ii)	18	3
	Question 8 (b)		
	Question 9 (a)*		
	Question 9 (b)		

Question 9 (c)	20
Question 10 (a) (i)	20
Question 10 (a) (ii)	21
Question 10 (b) (i)	21
Question 10 (b) (ii)	21
Question 10 (c)	21

Introduction

Our examiners' reports are produced to offer constructive feedback on candidates' performance in the examinations. They provide useful guidance for future candidates.

The reports will include a general commentary on candidates' performance, identify technical aspects examined in the questions and highlight good performance and where performance could be improved. A selection of candidate answers is also provided. The reports will also explain aspects which caused difficulty and why the difficulties arose, whether through a lack of knowledge, poor examination technique, or any other identifiable and explainable reason.

Where overall performance on a question/question part was considered good, with no particular areas to highlight, these questions have not been included in the report.

A full copy of the question paper and the mark scheme can be downloaded from OCR.

Would you prefer a Word version?

Did you know that you can save this PDF as a Word file using Acrobat Professional?

Simply click on File > Export to and select Microsoft Word

(If you have opened this PDF in your browser you will need to save it first. Simply right click anywhere on the page and select **Save as...** to save the PDF. Then open the PDF in Acrobat Professional.)

If you do not have access to Acrobat Professional there are a number of **free** applications available that will also convert PDF to Word (search for PDF to Word converter).

Paper 1 series overview

The paper gave an opportunity for all abilities of candidate to access the questions. Candidates could and did attempt most of the questions. It was evident that candidates had sufficient time to answer all the questions.

The questions catered for candidates of all abilities. Candidates were eased into the paper with a question that provided the words to use in the response. Some questions on the paper required more specific detailed knowledge in order to answer correctly which allowed for higher ability differentiation. Candidates were clearly well prepared for the examination, which is a great achievement considering the wide and varied content of the specification.

Some areas needed to be taught in more detail as candidates were often unable to apply deeper understanding of nutrition and food science, they also demonstrated a lack of knowledge in a variety of other areas of the specification. It was evident where topics had not been taught or had not been taught in enough detail as a lack of knowledge was seen on some of the questions.

Candidates who did well on this paper generally:	Candidates who did less well on this paper generally:
 had a good understanding of nutrition had clear knowledge of the types and functions of sugars could explain in detail both the dietary and nutritional needs of elderly people could explain how and why diet related health issues could develop in elderly people were able to recall accurate knowledge of the heat treatment of milk were able to use subject specific terminology correctly. 	 made careless mistakes due to not reading/answering the question that was asked had limited knowledge about food labelling had limited knowledge of the functions of fat in food preparation gave very brief responses to the questions requiring extended responses had little knowledge of nutrition.

5

Question 1 (a)

- 1 Ingredients are used in the preparation of food products for their different functions.
 - (a) Complete the table to show how eggs are used in the preparation for each food product.

Use each word from the list below once or not at all.

Aeration
Binding
Coagulation
Coating
Emulsification
Foam formation
Glazing

Food product	How eggs are used
Beef burgers	
Fish fingers	
Mayonnaise	
Meringue	
Quiche	
Swiss roll	

[6]

Many candidates answered this question well showing a clear knowledge of the functions of eggs. Some candidates were unclear about the difference between foam formation and aeration and incorrectly stated aeration for meringue and foam formation for swiss roll.

Question 1	(b) (i)
(b) (i)	Explain how a crumbly texture is created by fat in the preparation of shortcrust pastry.
	[2]
-	didates were able to explain how the texture is created. Candidates often related the neir practical work and described the rubbing in method.
Assessmen	t for learning
/ // \	andidates should be taught that when answering a question that asks them to explain mething, they are required to apply their knowledge and explain what happens and why.
Exemplar 1 The Solution This	it covers the flour particles, preventing them from water this stops of them from forming. is called shortening. [2]
Exemplar 1 sl	hows a candidate who was able to answer the question correctly.
Question 1	(b) (ii)
(11)	Explain why olive oil is suitable for vegans to use.
(ii)	Explain wity olive oil is suitable for vegatis to use.
	[2]

Most candidates were able to identify that olive oil is not made from animal products but from a plant source. Many did not provide a developed response and did not explain 'why' this was suitable for a vegan.

Question 1 (c) (iii)

GCSE (9-1) F000 F	Preparation and Nutrition - J309/01 - Summer 2023	Examiners report
Question 1	(c) (i)	
(c) (i)	State two reasons butter is used in baked products.	
	1	
	2	
		[2]
Many candida	ates answered this question well with a variety of responses from the mark sch	eme.
Question 1	(c) (ii)	
(ii)	Explain why yeast is used when making some baked products.	
		[3]
· -	was generally well answered because candidates could explain logically that which produces CO2 and gives a well risen/aerated texture to the baked produces.	
Assassman	t for learning	
ASSESSITIETT	t for learning	
ba an	ne vast majority of candidates were able to recall that yeast is a raising agent on the later of the products rise, however this only gained them 1 mark. When a question had asks for candidates to explain, they should be taught that three points should der to give a detailed explanation of what happens and why.	s 3 marks

(iii) Identify one baked product that is made using yeast.

Many candidates answered this question well as most were able to identify that bread was made using yeast.

[2]

Question 1 ((c)	(iv)	١
Question i ((C)	(IV)	,

(iv)	The crust on some baked products becomes brown when dry heat is applied. This happens because starch in the flour is changed into sugar.
	State the name of this process.

Some candidates were able to demonstrate the use of subject specific terminology in order to answer this question correctly. Some candidates knew the response but struggled to spell the word correctly.

Question 2 (a) (i)

2	(a)	(i)	Identify two ingredients that must be shown on food labels because they can cause an
			allergic reaction.

1	
2	

Most candidates were able to identify one ingredient that can cause an allergic reaction that must be shown on a food label, however many were not specific in identifying the type of nut or they stated dairy products and therefore could not achieve 2 marks.

Question 2 (a) (ii)

(ii)	State five pieces of information, other than allergy warnings, required by law to be on	а
	ood lahel	

1	
2	
3	
4	
5	
	51

Many candidates answered this question well stating at least three correct pieces of information. Candidates who were unable to recall the correct terminology did less well, stating responses such as expire date and producer. Some candidates gave responses such as how much fat/calories/sugar and traffic light label which are not mandatory.

9

Question	2	(b)
----------	---	-----

(b)	Explain what lactose intolerant means.
	[2]
lany car	ndidates were able to access 1 mark because they could recall it was when a person could not

Many candidates were able to access 1 mark because they could recall it was when a person could not consume dairy product or milk. Many did not gain a second mark as they did not recognise that lactose intolerant suffers could not 'digest' or 'cannot breakdown' the lactose.

Question 2 (c)

(c)	State two symptoms of coeliac disease.	
	1	
	2	
		[2]

Most candidates provided correct responses to this question while some were not specific with some responses.

Question 3*

3* Discuss the importance of a healthy diet for older people.

•	r discussion must include: the dietary and nutritional needs of older people diet-related health issues older people could develop.
	[42]

Many candidates limited their marks and access to Level 3 because they discussed nutritional information without due regard to the Dietary Needs or Health Issues of the older person, for example, protein for growth. Nutrients were listed with no reference to function or source. Many candidates demonstrated a sound knowledge of healthy eating but this was not clearly linked to elderly people.

Misconception



Topics such as the benefits of taking regular exercise and not consuming too much alcohol are not a part of this specification.

Candidates should be able to use their knowledge from a range of topics on the specification to answer the extended response question. Making a plan before answering the question is a good way to focus on the question being asked rather than just writing down everything they know about a particular topic.

Question 4 (a) (i)

4 Minced beef is used to make a meat sa	allice
---	--------

(a)	(i)	Explain how raw minced beef should be stored.
		[2]

Many candidates were able to identify how the beef should be stored but very few were able to develop their response and give a reasoned explanation.

Question 4	(a) (ii)					
(ii) Flour is used to thicken the meat sauce.						
	Explain why flour should be stored in a dry, airtight container.					
	[2]					
when candida	didates were able to explain why flour should be stored in this way. Common errors were stees linked bacteria/mould growth to the incorrect storage of flour. Some candidates e thickening of the meat sauce in their responses.					
	revent the growth of bacteria, as ena needs moisture and oxygen to grow.					
Exemplar 2 s	hows a typical incorrect response.					
Question 4	(a) (iii) Describe the methods of heat transfer used to cook the meat sauce.					

Many candidates could recall the correct terminology with convection and conduction often stated however, the explanations were not always correct.

Question 4	(a) (iv)
(iv)	State the temperature for safe reheating of the meat sauce.
	[1]
Some candida	ates could state the correct number but did not include the °C.
Question 4	- (b) (i)
(b) (i)	State the correct operating temperature for a domestic freezer.
	[1]
Some candida	ates could state the correct number but did not include the °C.
Question 4	- (b) (ii)
(ii)	Explain why it is important not to refreeze raw meat once it is defrosted.

Very few candidates provided correct responses to this question as they focused on defrosting the first time and not what happens after refreezing.

13

Assessment for learning



Candidates must read questions carefully and answer the question being asked. This question asked why meat should not be refrozen. The response required details of the effects when it defrosted for a second time. Very few candidates made this link, as many they had a clear knowledge of bacteria reproduction and conditions required for bacteria to reproduce.

[2]

Question 5 (a)

- 5 People choose to eat certain foods for different reasons.
 -[1]

Candidates gave a wide variety of incorrect responses to this question showing little understanding of probiotics. Religious and cultural reasons were favoured responses along with links to general good health.

(a) State one reason why people choose to include probiotic foods in their diet.

Question 5 (b)

(b) State two reasons why people choose to eat fresh vegetables.

•

Some candidates did not gain the marks for this question as they provided very vague responses.

Misconception



Some candidates had a misunderstanding of the word 'fresh'. Many thought fresh referred to it being local/organic/low food miles/pesticide free. Candidates also confused it with raw, with responses along the lines of retaining nutrients when not cooked, rather than associating it with not being tinned, juiced, dried or frozen. Some candidates also discussed why vegetables that are 'going off', 'bruised' would not be chosen. Candidates sometimes over complicate the response to a straightforward question.

Question 5 (c)	Q	uestion	5 (c)*
----------------	---	---------	------	----

(c)* Discuss ways of saving money when buying food.
[8]

Many candidates demonstrated an understanding of ways to save money when buying food and performed well on this question because they were able to discuss a wide variety of ways with very clear explanations. Candidates demonstrated relevant knowledge possibly because this is a topical subject. Where candidates performed less well, they wrote in bullet points or digressed into using and storing leftovers, food miles, growing your own vegetables or using food banks which are not linked to buying food.

Question 6 (a)

	6	Energy in	tood	is me	easured	ın ı	units.
--	---	-----------	------	-------	---------	------	--------

(a)	Identify the two units used to measure the energy in food.		
	1		
	2		
	[2]		

Candidates answered this question stating a variety of units of measurements. Some candidates repeated the response giving both the word and the abbreviation for the same unit of measurement. The most common incorrect response 'joules'. Some responses given related to weight such as grams.

Question 6 (b)

- (b) Sam eats these foods for breakfast:
 - Tinned fruit in syrup

able to identify a second correct response.

- Fried egg and pork sausage with tomato ketchup
- Hot chocolate made with full fat milk.

	State four ways the foods in this breakfast can be modified to reduce the energy content.
	1
	2
	3
	4
	[4]
common	ndidates answered this question well as they were knowledgeable about alternate options for breakfast items to reduce energy content. A few candidates however made reference to premoving elements of the breakfast rather than modifying the ingredients.
Questi	on 7 (a)
7 (a)	State two functions of carbohydrates in the diet.
	1
	2[2]
	[2]

Most candidate were able to identify energy as a function of carbohydrates while fewer candidates were

16

© OCR 2023

Questi	on 7 (b)	
(b)	Explain the difference between a monosaccharide and a disaccharide.	

Very few candidates provided correct responses. Candidates correctly knew 'mono' meant one and 'di' meant two but were unable to link this to sugar. This question requires detailed subject specific knowledge.

Exemplar 3

me	nos	accho	ride	is c	ne Suc	jar molec	ule,
dis	acch	aride	is.	two	Sugar	molecul	<u>es</u>

Exemplar 3 shows a response which shows clear knowledge.

Question 7 (c) (i)

(c) (i) State three properties of sugar when used in food preparation.

1

2

3**[3**]

Many candidates could state that one property of sugar when used in food preparation is to add flavour or to sweeten. Some candidates did not correctly read and understand that it was the properties of sugar being required and instead named types of sugar.

GCSE (9-1) F000	Preparation and Nutrition - 3309/01 - Summer 2023	Examiners report
Question 7	7 (c) (ii)	
(ii)	State two ways too much sugar in the diet can affect the body.	
	1	
	2	[2]
•	ates could state one correct way. When marks were not gained it was often becave vague responses such as rotten teeth and diabetes without indicating type	
Question 8	3 (a) (i)	
8 Fruit and	d vegetables can be prepared in different ways.	
(a) (i)	State two ways vegetables can be prepared to enhance their appearance.	
	1	
	2	
		[2]
Many candida preparing.	ates answered this question correctly, others referred to types of presentation r	ather than
Question 8	B (a) (ii)	
(ii)	State two ways vegetables can be cooked.	
	1	
	2	

Many candidates were able to answer this question correctly.

18

Question	8 ((b))

	(b)	Describe two ways of reducing enzymic browning when preparing fruit and vegetables.
		1
		2
		[2]
		ndidates were able to describe at least one way of reducing enzymic browning. The most incorrect responses related to leaving in the fridge or in a tight container.
_		
Que	estic	on 9 (a)*
9	Diffe	erent methods can be used to process foods.
	(a)*	Describe the different methods used in the heat treatment of milk.

Some candidates demonstrated really detailed knowledge in their answers to this question. Candidates had either been taught this topic well and knew a lot of detail, names and temperatures/times, or they had little or no knowledge of the topic. Some candidates explained how to heat milk at home on the hob/microwave or mentioned homogenisation. Some were able to name the correct methods but did not accurately describe them.

Question 9 (b)		
(b) State two advantages of chilled ready meals.		
1		
2		
[2]		
Many answered this question well, giving a wide variety of answers from the mark scheme.		
Question 9 (c)		
(c) Explain the process of blast chilling food.		
[2]		
Some candidates knew that blast chilling 'cools food quickly'. Many candidates talked about freezing the food therefore not responding to the question accurately. Very few explained why this was important in preventing the growth of bacteria/reduces time in the danger zone.		
Question 10 (a) (i)		
10 Different methods can be used to cook food.		
(a) (i) Identify one water-based method of cooking that uses the hob.		
[1]		

This was a very well answered question showing clear understanding.

20 © OCR 2023

Question '	10 (a) (ii)
(ii)	State one advantage of water-based cooking methods.
	[1]
This was a w	rell answered question.
Question	10 (b) (i)
(b) (i)	Identify one fat-based method of cooking which uses the hob.
	[1]
This was a ve	ery well answered question showing clear understanding.
Question '	10 (b) (ii)
(ii)	State one disadvantage of fat-based cooking methods.
	[1]
This was a w	rell answered question.
Question	10 (c)
(c) Exp	plain why casseroling is often used to cook tough cuts of meat.
••••	
	[2]

Many candidates were able to gain 1 mark for being able to identify that this option softens or tenderises the meat but very few developed their responses in order gain a second mark.

Supporting you

Teach Cambridge

Make sure you visit our secure website <u>Teach Cambridge</u> to find the full range of resources and support for the subjects you teach. This includes secure materials such as set assignments and exemplars, online and on-demand training.

Don't have access? If your school or college teaches any OCR qualifications, please contact your exams officer. You can <u>forward them this link</u> to help get you started.

Reviews of marking

If any of your students' results are not as expected, you may wish to consider one of our post-results services. For full information about the options available visit the OCR website.

Access to Scripts

For the June 2023 series, Exams Officers will be able to download copies of your candidates' completed papers or 'scripts' for all of our General Qualifications including Entry Level, GCSE and AS/A Level. Your centre can use these scripts to decide whether to request a review of marking and to support teaching and learning.

Our free, on-demand service, Access to Scripts is available via our single sign-on service, My Cambridge. Step-by-step instructions are on our <u>website</u>.

Keep up-to-date

We send a monthly bulletin to tell you about important updates. You can also sign up for your subject specific updates. If you haven't already, sign up here.

OCR Professional Development

Attend one of our popular CPD courses to hear directly from a senior assessor or drop in to a Q&A session. Most of our courses are delivered live via an online platform, so you can attend from any location.

Please find details for all our courses for your subject on **Teach Cambridge**. You'll also find links to our online courses on NEA marking and support.

Signed up for ExamBuilder?

ExamBuilder is the question builder platform for a range of our GCSE, A Level, Cambridge Nationals and Cambridge Technicals qualifications. Find out more.

ExamBuilder is **free for all OCR centres** with an Interchange account and gives you unlimited users per centre. We need an <u>Interchange</u> username to validate the identity of your centre's first user account for ExamBuilder.

If you do not have an Interchange account please contact your centre administrator (usually the Exams Officer) to request a username, or nominate an existing Interchange user in your department.

Active Results

Review students' exam performance with our free online results analysis tool. It is available for all GCSEs, AS and A Levels and Cambridge Nationals.

Find out more.

Need to get in touch?

If you ever have any questions about OCR qualifications or services (including administration, logistics and teaching) please feel free to get in touch with our customer support centre.

Call us on

01223 553998

Alternatively, you can email us on **support@ocr.org.uk**

For more information visit

- □ ocr.org.uk/qualifications/resource-finder
- ocr.org.uk
- facebook.com/ocrexams
- **y** twitter.com/ocrexams
- instagram.com/ocrexaminations
- inkedin.com/company/ocr
- youtube.com/ocrexams

We really value your feedback

Click to send us an autogenerated email about this resource. Add comments if you want to. Let us know how we can improve this resource or what else you need. Your email address will not be used or shared for any marketing purposes.





Please note – web links are correct at date of publication but other websites may change over time. If you have any problems with a link you may want to navigate to that organisation's website for a direct search.



OCR is part of Cambridge University Press & Assessment, a department of the University of Cambridge.

For staff training purposes and as part of our quality assurance programme your call may be recorded or monitored. © OCR 2023 Oxford Cambridge and RSA Examinations is a Company Limited by Guarantee. Registered in England. Registered office The Triangle Building, Shaftesbury Road, Cambridge, CB2 8EA. Registered company number 3484466. OCR is an exempt charity.

OCR operates academic and vocational qualifications regulated by Ofqual, Qualifications Wales and CCEA as listed in their qualifications registers including A Levels, GCSEs, Cambridge Technicals and Cambridge Nationals.

OCR provides resources to help you deliver our qualifications. These resources do not represent any particular teaching method we expect you to use. We update our resources regularly and aim to make sure content is accurate but please check the OCR website so that you have the most up to date version. OCR cannot be held responsible for any errors or omissions in these resources.

Though we make every effort to check our resources, there may be contradictions between published support and the specification, so it is important that you always use information in the latest specification. We indicate any specification changes within the document itself, change the version number and provide a summary of the changes. If you do notice a discrepancy between the specification and a resource, please contact us.

You can copy and distribute this resource freely if you keep the OCR logo and this small print intact and you acknowledge OCR as the originator of the resource.

OCR acknowledges the use of the following content: N/A

 $Whether you already offer OCR qualifications, are new to OCR or are thinking about switching, you can request more information using our \underline{\text{Expression of Interest form}}.$

Please get in touch if you want to discuss the accessibility of resources we offer to support you in delivering our qualifications.